

City Council Chamber 200 Old Bernal Avenue, Pleasanton, CA 94566

DRAFT

Wednesday, March 9, 2016

CALL TO ORDER

The Planning Commission Meeting of March 9, 2016, was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Chair Ritter.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Chair Ritter.

1. <u>ROLL CALL</u>

Staff Members Present:Gerry Beaudin, Director of Community Development; Adam
Weinstein, Planning Manager; Julie Harryman, Interim City
Attorney; Jay Lee, Associate Planner; Jenny Soo, Associate
Planner; and Kendall Rose, Recording SecretaryCommissioners Present:Commissioners Nancy Allen, Jack Balch, David Nagler
(arrived at 7:10 p.m.), Greg O'Connor, and Chair Ritter

Commissioners Absent: None

2. <u>APPROVAL OF MINUTES</u>

a. February 10, 2016

Commissioner O'Connor moved to approve the Minutes of the February 10, 2016 Meeting.

Commissioner Nagler seconded the motion.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

AYES: Commissioners Nagler, O'Connor, and Ritter NOES: None

ABSTAIN: Commissioners Allen, Balch RECUSED: None ABSENT: None

The Minutes of the February 13, 2016 Meeting were approved as submitted.

3. <u>MEETING OPEN FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE AUDIENCE TO ADDRESS THE</u> <u>PLANNING COMMISSION ON ANY ITEM WHICH IS NOT ALREADY ON THE</u> <u>AGENDA</u>

Patrick B. Follain: Good evening City Planning Commission members and staff. I am Patrick Follain. I'm the Transportation Personnel Manager for Black Tie Transportation located in the middle of 12 lots being proposed to be rezoned in the Johnson Drive Economic Development Zone. Our business has operated in this area for nearly three decades and for nearly 20 years at the current location. We're at a corner in the northwest area of our beautiful City which is both economically and socially diverse. If you've visited our area recently, you'll notice that our community is filled with an eclectic mix of dynamic and local enterprises, including retail, commercial and social operations that run the gamut, from the dog spa to the Double Tree by Hilton Hotel, CrossFit baseball and badminton facilities, contractor services, commercial landscapers, engineering firms and a bible church, just to name a few. Apparently, planners on staff haven't been there recently since none of the businesses we polled appear to have been consulted about this proposed change in advance of it being announced.

It is obvious this change is originating predominantly from the single interest of one landowner; Nearon, and one leaseholder; Costco, for a building not yet constructed on land not yet zoned for its proposed use. All along we have been told that this is simply a proposal, a suggestion, a process still seeking public input and opinions from the community. Do you want us to just stand by idly and accept a dramatic increase of air pollution to be released by tens of thousands of cars and trucks just feet from my door that the EIR says exceeds previously approved limits? It was reported in the last Council meeting that the 20 Costco gas pumps will put out the equivalent of 8 average sized fuel stations. Do you want us to simply accept the metropolitan sized traffic problem as well squeezing 12,000 to 16,000 vehicles a day down a two-lane street?

The projected traffic flow in front of the proposed Costco or big box retailer is based on a premise that most of the store's traffic will come from Stoneridge. Traffic flows like water; in the direction of least resistance. The excess traffic combined with the addition of three traffic lights are likely to put a chokehold on the current businesses needing to head north on Johnson Drive. This will be financially harmful for some and possibly apocalyptic for a few. If the pollution and traffic don't seem to make you hesitate, please reflect on the safety concern for the nearly 800+ huge truckloads bearing down on a two-lane road carrying goods, oil and gas.

Do you want us to accept the weak explanation that an economic study cannot possibly be far-reaching enough to examine the potential loss of business to local retailers? Remember, the tremendous street improvements have yet to be budgeted and may run as high as \$16 million. Where will this money come from I ask? And who will be negotiating with potential tenants for the offsets of tax advantages that are part of any deal of this size? I ask you as community leaders to please reconsider this idea of a big box retailer on Johnson Drive, be reasonable, be leaders, please understand what is being proposed and then do the right thing for our community. Thank you.

Carrie Cox: Tonight I will be brief. When I look up Pleasanton on Wikipedia, two descriptions caught my attention. First and I quote: "Pleasanton continues to maintain a small town flavor and second, was ranked #4 in 2014 by USA Today as America's Best Cities to Live In." I ask you in two years, in 2018, will Pleasanton still be described as having a small town flavor? Will it even be ranked in the top 50 of America's best cities to live in? The citizens of Pleasanton have entrusted you with maintaining their quality of life, small town flavor, one of America's best cities to live in. Will your decision about Costco be about tax dollars or about the will of the people?

On February 24th a customer of ours summed it up best: "Our representative should not allow this. I hope the Council takes our side." On March 4th a customer said, "This is crazy. Do we have a say? I want to vote." Yesterday, a customer said, "Thank you. Please help us fight this." Nearon says it is a done deal. I say no way. The citizens will have a voice. It's not a done deal. Thank you for allowing me to speak.

Bill Wheeler: Good evening Planning Commission, members and staff. I'm Bill Wheeler, owner of Black Tie Transportation at the corner of Commerce and Johnson Drives here in Pleasanton. I hope by now that you know my issue and that of many of the citizens of Pleasanton and the surrounding communities. It is the Johnson Drive Economic Development Zone and especially the plan to add a big box store or Costco to the area. I've been appearing before you for the past several weeks and months to make my concerns and those of others known, but you and the City Council seem to be pursuing a same path you initially introduced without explanation and now with continuous extensions. At this point since it seems we really aren't being heard, we've decided to take action.

Today, the Citizens for Planning Growth of which I'm a member has sent to the City Attorney an Initiative regarding the Johnson Drive Economic Development Zone that we asked to be placed on the ballot for the November 8th general election. The simple goal of this initiative is to let the citizens of Pleasanton decide if they want to have a big box store like Costco in the JDEDZ. It is an attempt to make the process more straight forward. This kind of large scale input resulting in a well-informed decision will guarantee all of us an outcome that won't be second guessed or challenged after the citizens have had their chance to vote. Thank you for allowing me this platform over the past few months. I look forward to working with you on getting the very best solution for the JDEDZ and the citizens of Pleasanton. Thank you.

Weinstein: There are no major updates. We are in the throes of reviewing the Response to Comments on the Draft Supplemental EIR and another big document which is the economic study that was prepared for the EDZ, and I just wanted to emphasize as well that it is not a done deal at this point. Again, we're in the midst of studying the Economic Development Zone. The plan is to take it to a joint City Council/Planning Commission workshop in early April. Before that, we'll publish the Response to Comments document and the economic study so people will have many weeks to review those documents

before the workshop and can learn about the project and what the impacts of the project are.

Ritter: So these public comments that are being incorporated into the EIR have been heard at past workshops?

Weinstein: That's right. I think we had an over 60-day public review period on the Draft Supplemental EIR. We had a couple of neighborhood meetings, workshops with the Planning Commission, and have gotten a lot of written comments as well during this entire process from the public and agencies and other folks.

Ritter: Okay, so stay tuned. More is coming. Thank you for your input; the audience and residents.

4. **REVISIONS TO THE AGENDA**

There were no revisions to the agenda.

5. <u>CONSENT CALENDAR</u>

Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the Planning Commission or a member of the public by submitting a speaker card for that item.

a. P15-0748/P16-0222, Jim Morgenroth

Application for a Conditional Use Permit to establish development standards and for Administrative Design Review approval to construct an approximately 380-square-foot covered front porch and an approximately 411-square-foot single-story rear addition to the existing residence located at 455 Sycamore Road. Zoning for the property is PUD-MDR (Planned Unit Development – Medium Density Residential) District.

Commissioner Nagler moved to approve Commissioner O'Connor seconded the motion

ROLL CALL VOTE:

AYES:Commissioners Allen, Balch, Nagler, O'Connor, and RitterNOES:NoneABSTAIN:NoneRECUSED:NoneABSENT:None

Resolution No. PC-2016-03 approving Case P15-0748/P16-0222 was entered and adopted as motioned.

6. PUBLIC HEARING AND OTHER MATTERS

a. PUD-115, Guy Houston

Application for Planned Unit Development (PUD) Development Plan to retain the existing single-family residence and construct two new single-family residences and related improvements on separate lots located at 11249 Dublin Canyon Road. Zoning for the property is PUD-LDR (Planned Unit Development – Low Density Residential) District.

Jenny Soo presented the staff report and described the scope, layout, and key elements of the proposal.

Guy Houston, applicant, gave a presentation regarding the PUD Development Plan.

Nagler: To clarify, you said Lot 1 is a one-story house?

Houston: Yes.

Nagler: Okay, so has that recently changed or did I just misunderstand it?

Balch: There's an older set of plans in the back. So if you're looking at that, the folded pages, that's the....

Houston: The previous project in 2006 proposed two, two-story homes. Our project is slightly different so we have a one-story and then a two-story on the frontage.

Nagler: Just a couple of quick questions; as I understand the staff report, staff is suggesting a different FAR calculation than you're proposing? Right? You proposed 30% and they're proposing 25%? Is that correct?

Houston: Yes.

Nagler: How do you feel about that?

Houston: That is completely fine for us. We just went with what was the standard for the R-2, 20,000 and that's 30%. We didn't pick it. We just thought that the 20,000 was the most appropriate designation and so that's what it came with. It was pointed out that if we had 30%, you're talking about a 7,500-square-foot home. It wouldn't happen anyway, but I think it's a safeguard; and if you tandem that with making sure you can't go above a certain elevation, it ensures you're not going to be needing or designed to go any further. It does give a little room for a little bit of expansion for the current footprint. Maybe someone might want to do that years from now, but it's completely fine for us.

Nagler: Then the final question. The staff recommendation on the changes in the development limit the envelope that could be developed. Are you fine with that change, as well?

Houston: Yes, that's what I referred to. Yes, that's completely fine. There's no desire to be growing up into the trees, and it really ramps up quite dramatically once you get there so as a practical matter you wouldn't do it, but it's good to have that protection in there.

Nagler: Okay, thank you.

Ritter: Great, thank you Mr. Houston. Now questions for staff? Who wants to start?

O'Connor: Maybe staff can expand on the sidewalk

Weinstein: Yes, it's a really good comment. We're balancing two things here with the sidewalk. One is our adopted Complete Streets policy which was adopted back in 2012 which seeks to make sure the transportation network for all of our City actually, but especially new development, takes into account modes of transport that don't include just the private automobile. So it would include pedestrian and bicycle transportation as well. That's something we're obliged to adhere to when we're looking at new developments. So that's one consideration. The other consideration of course is the one that Mr. Houston talked about which is the need to preserve the rural character along Dublin Canyon Road.

So, we're balancing these two things to make sure that pedestrian transportation is incorporated into the design of roadway features around new projects, but we also want to make sure that the rural character of the area is protected. What we have right now is a standard condition of approval that requires the sidewalk to be provided on the site. There is a compromise option that we were strategizing on earlier today which would be to refine Condition of Approval No. 38 to convert the sidewalk to more of a trail and more of a pedestrian walkway that would use decomposed granite or some similar substance instead of concrete and that would secure our objectives of providing some sort of pedestrian access along the site with the desire to protect the aesthetic character of the stretch of Dublin Canyon Road. There are other options out there as well. If you decide to get rid of that condition completely, we would not suggest doing so because of our Complete Streets Policy, and we do think that this compromise of having some sort of pedestrian walkway that's not paved would be adequate and satisfy our Complete Streets objectives and protect the look of the place.

O'Connor: But do you concur that this sidewalk or path would not connect anything else? Is there no plan for the properties to the north or south?

Weinstein: Yes, that's a good question. We look well into the future when thinking about this and as you know, there are development proposals for sites that are further west along Dublin Canyon Road. Ponderosa is proposing an approximately 40-unit residential subdivision that is west of this site along Dublin Canyon Road. That project is very early in the review process. You haven't seen it yet. It's still being reviewed by staff internally. The long-term intention is that if and when properties along Dublin Canyon Road develop that individual property owners will be responsible for providing pedestrian access on Dublin Canyon Road such that when all of the properties are developed, there will be a contiguous stretch of sidewalk or pedestrian walkway and the City won't have to pay for it. It will be paid for by private property owners. We do not

want to say this is a sidewalk to nowhere because it does connect to the sidewalk in the Preserve. There's a sidewalk along Laurel Creek and the utility of that sidewalk is probably pretty limited so again we're looking at long-term pedestrian access in this area.

O'Connor: Who would maintain this walkway after the development is completed? The sidewalk in front of your house is maintained now by the homeowner. Would the same thing be with the decomposed granite path? Or, would it all be maintained by the property owners and not by the City?

Weinstein: That's right.

Ritter: I have one more speaker card. I apologize. I have one speaker card and then we'll bring it back to questions. Diane Kolb? Is Diane here?

Diane Kolb: Hi, I'm Diane Lester Kolb, neighbor. I'm for this project, but I'm interested in the open space, the issue about the animals. I've known Barbara and her family for 55 years. You brought that up. I'm very interested in that. If it was sidewalk and cement, the City of Pleasanton would maintain it? Right? The property owner would maintain it? Okay. They want to put in three houses in, so the three houses would be charged yearly for that kind of situation to upkeep that? Or, how would it be if it's a walkway that you're going to extend, extend, extend. How does that work financially for the land owners or the property owners of that area? My main concern is what the cost would be because we plan on coming to you people with a project ourselves, so I'm interested in that kind of situation versus the cement sidewalk, but I really like this project. Thank you.

Ritter: Thank you, we'll bring it back to staff and the Commission.

Harryman: I'll just back up what Adam was saying. So people don't necessarily realize it but state law requires the adjacent property owner, whether it's residential or commercial, to maintain the sidewalk adjacent to their property. The same thing would be the case whether this is a concrete sidewalk or whether it's some sort of path.

O'Connor: And the maintenance is as needed. So if tree roots are lifting it up or other trip hazards, or if the path is worn down by horses running down it or whatever....

Harryman: That's exactly right. State law actually talks about keeping it maintained so it is safe for users. So that's the standard—basically no tripping hazards, no divots, anything that would create a safety hazard to a pedestrian or possibly a bicyclist.

O'Connor: And it doesn't matter what it's made of?

Harryman: No.

Allen: I was comparing the square footage of Lot 3 from the plan 10 years ago versus now and it looks like it's about 20% larger in terms of square footage. The house was 4,100 square feet, Lot 3, plus a 700-square-foot garage, so roughly in counting the two it was around 4,800. I'm doing a little bit of rounding. Now the house is around 4,500

square feet and it has a 1,289-square-foot garage so it's about 5,800 square feet, so it's larger. And the reason I'm asking is that when I look at this diagram that David mentioned earlier and drove the property, it seemed like that was a pretty large house and so I'm now thinking it's going to be 20% larger. And so I'm wondering what the thinking was. And I know the Council approved the old plan and that could have been put in. This is significantly larger so I'm wondering what the thinking was on why the change.

Ritter: Would you like to wait for all of our questions? Let's do that. There might be more and then you can answer them all. Any other questions?

Allen: The other one was more of a technical question on the FAR. I'm looking at page 5 versus page 7; the two tables. On page 5, Table 1 for Lot 3 said the FAR was 20% and in fact if you work the math it's actually 23% because you have to include the garage space over 600 square feet. But then the next page has different numbers and I know the next page adds square footage for future additions, but even the base numbers are different. So I don't want to get us hung up necessarily, but I think the numbers are different, especially for Lot 3 and I didn't double-check all of them.

Ritter: What page are you looking at?

Allen: I'm looking at Lot 3; the FAR on page 5 which should be 20%. If you just work the math on the square footage, it would be 22.9%. And then I'm looking at page 7 of 15, Lot 3, and again, you might want to double-check it. But the bottom line is that we're really here to talk about perception and keeping a rural character more than some technical FAR number. So I won't get hung up with FAR as long as we've got consistency.

I want to thank Guy for preparing the streetscape images. That was a question I had asked earlier and found that to be very helpful. I know that was done quickly and I really appreciate it. Thank you. In terms of the old plan that was approved versus this plan and the trees that were being taken out, do we have a similar strategy on which trees were being taken out 10 years ago versus now? Or, are we taking out more trees or less trees?

Soo: As I recall, we're not taking more trees because the 2006 plan for Lot 3 sits further south. If you look at the topo map, the more southern portion you go, the more steeper the slopes and trees. So that would require more grading and removal of trees. For the current plan, it is question 4 which is more toward Dublin Canyon Road so there is less grading and it would not touch any of the trees in the back.

Allen: Okay, thanks. And then I have one final question which is regarding the entrance driveway which I guess has space on one side for cars to park. Where I'm going is whether there is a way to preserve that oak tree. I don't know if there is. The big oak tree in front, but part of my thinking is whether there is a different way to design a driveway or a narrower kind of driveway such that we might be able to preserve that oak? The oak really adds a lot of character and it also screens the center house, and I think creates a very different environment than we're seeing in an open lot especially

given that Lot 1 is so close to the road and now Lot 2 which is very big will really not be protected and people will see that more predominantly. So that's the question I have.

Ritter: Great question. We'll bring that back to the applicant. Do you have any other questions?

O'Connor: I too was a little concerned about the rural character...I was hoping that the two-story on Lot 3 could be better screened from the road. It looked like it was pretty open to the road, or at least I envisioned it to be pretty open to the road to see this two story structure. So if I'm wrong, correct me, but it's fairly close to the property line so I don't know how much landscaping or tree work could go in there, but it would be nice if we could do something to screen that two-story from visibility from the road if possible.

Weinstein: We can talk about trees maybe and driveway to begin with.

Ritter: Sure.

Balch: Can I ask a quick question? This is a little odd. I just realized when Commissioner Allen was commenting. There was no workshop on this, right? Is that normal?

Weinstein: Our policy to date has been if a project involves rezoning or a General Plan re-designation that we take it to a workshop and if it's a major project in downtown we generally take it to you for a workshop. With this project there's no General Plan change, no zoning change, it's just a Planned Unit Development with a development plan so that's why.

Balch: Okay, it just feels like we missed a step. I apologize, go ahead.

Weinstein: So we can tackle the tree issue first. I just wanted to point out that there are four trees being removed but the applicant is also proposing to plant 19 new trees on this site and there is also a condition of approval that asks for more trees. We do feel like there's going to be a good amount of substitute trees planted on the site to address some visual concerns. One option if you're still concerned about screening views of the proposed homes is that we could increase the size of the existing trees that are being planted as part of the landscape plan. They are currently 15 gallons each so we could increase those each to 24-inch box trees which would be slightly bigger than what's currently being proposed.

O'Connor: Do you specify where those trees are going to go?

Weinstein: Yes, they're in a landscape plan which is in Exhibit B, Sheet L-1 in your attachment.

Ritter: Can we put it up on the screen?

Beaudin: The date on Sheet L-1 is January 3, 2016, so it should say 01-03-16 just to make sure we're all looking at the same plan. The container size is listed in the chart and you can see where the trees are proposed in the front yard. There's a generous

amount of planting. There are four new street trees and those are London Plane trees all shown as 15 gallon. The 15 gallon is fairly small size when you come out of a nursery. 24-inch box is the next size up and a 48-inch box is probably the largest you'd want to put down in a situation like this. The problem is when they get too big they don't do as well initially, so we want to make sure we pick something in the middle of the road if we're going to upsize the trees. We want to make sure we give those trees the best chance to succeed in the long run so that's probably a 24-inch box sized planting. If you all have L-1 open you can see that the majority of the new planting is in the area of the tree to be removed and along the frontage, so the tree to be removed is in the center of the driveway. That's the oak that Commissioner Allen mentioned. So, yes, four new street trees as well as some new Southern Live Oak as on the entry drive. All of those we would recommend be increased in size from 15 gallon to 24-inch box to give you that pop initially on the landscape.

Balch: All four you're saying?

Beaudin: I'm saying all four of the London Plane and the three oaks that are proposed. There's one actually farther up the driveway on Lot 3 as well.

O'Connor: So they won't let us plant any on the Preserve community association? Unfortunately that's part of the two-story structure that's going to be the most visible, but not much side yard space to the west.

Balch: Back to the sidewalks, I'm looking at L-1 and see this proposed sidewalk and it does appear that it is drawn in here. Is that approximately where staff believes the sidewalk would go under their current Condition No. 38?

Weinstein: Yes.

Balch: Is a 6-foot width sidewalk per Condition No. 38 the standard width?

Weinstein: Yes. We occasionally see slightly smaller sidewalks, but 6 feet is a good wide sidewalk for a few people walking side by side.

Beaudin: Commissioner Balch, could I just jump in with the Complete Streets Policy again? The target around town is 6 feet and it doesn't necessarily have to be right up against the road like it is shown in this plan. So if you're going to modify Condition No. 38 if you decide to keep that condition, then what I would recommend is that you give the flexibility for it to be designed in a way that's more consistent with the rural character of the street, so it could be off the edge of the street, it could be meandering, and it could be definitely of a different material.

O'Connor: Similar to the one we discussed at the church property?

Beaudin: Exactly—meandering, pushed away from the road edge.

Balch: And to continue on that question about Condition No. 38, obviously they've drawn it further on the property they don't own so that's a little bit of an issue. Laurel Creek has a sidewalk. Is that on this side or is that on the other side?

Beaudin: Commissioner Balch, just to clarify the ownership, it's actually public right-ofway where the sidewalk is shown. That would be constructed outside of the private property.

Balch: So you're telling me that as a developer, I could build a sidewalk on someone else's property because it's right-of-way?

Beaudin: I'm saying it's the City's land and what we're saying is that you need to complete our street and so we're not on other people's private property. We'd be developing a sidewalk on public property.

Balch: So the Preserve Community Association.... the City's not the title holder, but what I hear you saying is that they deeded it as public open space?

Beaudin: Once you get off of the site plan, we're actually not looking at a civil drawing, so what I would suggest is taking a look at L-1. You can see there's a very light dotted line just to the left of the line of trees and that light dotted line that moves east/west on Dublin Canyon, as you move down Dublin Canyon there's a light dotted line. It's to the left of the tree trunks—those three trees that I was calling street trees. That line actually continues, it doesn't just end and that's the public right-of-way to the left of that line. So we're suggesting that that new pedestrian walkway would be between the edge of the road and essentially the tree trunks. That could continue, and what I'm suggesting is that the Preserve Community Association—I don't know where the lot line is there. If we had to bend it at that point and have people get right along the curb edge we would if the sidewalk had to meander closer to the curb there to stay out of Preserve land. We'd want to know exactly where the right-of-way is and we'd have, just like at any other intersection, a cut in the curb where you could cross the street and get to the next sidewalk. In this case, it is across Laurel Creek Drive where the sidewalk exists.

Balch: Now for a point of clarification because I'm following it a lot better and I appreciate the clarity. So, on the Preserve Community Association's land, let's call it to the east which is on the top of our map here; L-1, the sidewalk is shown as continuing, right?

Beaudin: Correct.

Balch: Can this developer build that sliver right there?

Beaudin: What you're not looking at is a civil drawing. So the Preserve Community Association does have a corner monument but there's also public right-of-way and it would surprise me greatly if the public right-of-way disappeared at that corner. I would suggest that if we looked at a true civil drawing, the public right-of-way continues right on through there and that monument is on private property and to the left if you're going up Dublin Canyon would be public right-of-way and we would have the ability to finish that sidewalk.

Balch: That's very good knowledge. Okay, let's go to this private drive if I may ask. I noticed the condition requires ADA compliant sidewalks. Is a decomposed granite sidewalk ADA compliant?

Beaudin: Yes, it can be and it's a maintenance issue. We suggested DG tonight, but it could be something else. If maintenance is a long-term concern for these property owners, we would look at a different material that's a little more durable in grain and heavy use.

Balch: How then does that inter-sector cross that private road? Does it then have a truncated dome and a concrete...?

Beaudin: It would be an ADA compliant curb.

Balch: With bright yellow concrete?

Beaudin: It doesn't have to be bright yellow. It has to be a different color than the....

Balch:there's bright yellow, there's a grey one and then there's something else, right?

Beaudin: There are options. The code actually says it has to be a different color than the material it is next to.

Balch: And texture, right? So despite calling it a DG path or something, we're going to come to a concrete intersection to go down and cross the private drive and then pick it back up on the other side.

Beaudin: Correct. It will be finished curb at that area.

Balch: This has been a very informative conversation. Thank you by the way Gerry. Okay, so that's my sidewalk question. To the trees question or comment going on, I'm okay with upsizing. I don't think all seven need upsizing. I was only going to say possibly the one on the western side which is the lower portion in front of Lot 3 only, but I could float with this.

Nagler: I'm still hung up on the sidewalk. As you go west through the Preserve property, the question I'm trying to get to is the continuity of the sidewalk, whatever material it may be and whether or not there is a chance, and it may be a realistic chance, that the sidewalk that is begun as part of the applicant's development would to the west end up connecting to a future development or not and whether or not there is a possibility that it would be one contiguous sidewalk. Or, in fact, given the Preserve property and the location of the applicant that we'll see at some point to the west, that in fact there is not much chance of it being one continuous sidewalk.

Beaudin: I'll kind of carry on where Adam left off. We do have an application in with Ponderosa and if they move forward we would connect. And there is public right-of-way in front of the Preserve. Obviously we didn't require a sidewalk when that development was approved, but we do have another application of 40 housing units, and there would be an expectation that they would connect their project to this location. And we haven't had that conversation with the developer but it's certainly part of the Complete Streets mandate and from a future resident amenity, to be able to walk in the area in your neighborhood and be off the street is going to be an important piece of infrastructure for those future residents. So we would pursue that with the developer pretty directly.

Ritter: I want to bring the applicant back up here and then we'll go to comments.

Guy Houston, applicant: First off, regarding the sidewalk having the DG is something we would love to have. We think this white gleaming sidewalk is way out of place and inappropriate. Having that DG type of surface, as one of our conditions... we're going to have a little maintenance agreement among the three property owners anyway so over time, those types of things would have to be maintained as was said, sidewalks, whatever they're made of, is the responsibility of the property owner that it is adjacent to. That's a big success there as long as you have this condition here that says Americans with Disabilities Act, and make sure this is compliant. I don't want to come back later and say we couldn't make it comply so we've got to go back with your white gleaming sidewalks. I don't think that's fair. So if that's the case, yes, we want to support that change to my application.

First off, to answer your question Nancy we've been working on this for almost 2 years now and I didn't even look at what was approved 12 years ago as far as what the size of the houses are. That rendering you have from 12 years ago, those houses weren't going to look like that and it wasn't going to look that way from the street. So technology has made it a little bit better now. But the difference between that approval and this one, the biggest one is that lot; the house here was all the way back to where we were showing here. So the back of the house was right here kind of almost level or parallel with Ms. Young's home. In that case there were more trees being destroyed and also in that case those are the good looking trees, the beautiful ones. So our emphasis was to try and stay away from the beautiful part and bring this home down closer to the road. That's really the biggest change that we have between the two projects. We've spent a lot of time, and how this comes down to this point here, we think we've done a lot of landscaping and it's going to do a good job. The one thing to understand, and this photo isn't really great but you can see here Dublin Canyon Road, from here all the way to the project being proposed by Ponderosa, there is a wall of trees--and that's a tree right there—and it's just a wall all the way down towards the Lester's property. So as far as seeing that Lot 3, you're not going to see Lot 3 until it's right there. Going east, you will never see that house. And those aren't trees I paid for. Those trees have been there forever. And so as you're driving this way you will never see that home until you're right there and if you want to spin your head to the right you'll see Lot 3 and that home. It's going to have a lot of landscaping in front there.

Lot 1 obviously is a different story and we tried to lessen that impact by going one-story instead of having a two-story. So we think we've lessened the impacts and it was really important to us that the trees up here are really the beautiful ones and if you kind of get in the middle of this tree, this is actually—it's got like four trunks hanging out. It's not the majestic oak we'd like, but the ones up here are beautiful and this is why we designed the project so the house is closer down here to protect that, and additionally less grading. We don't have big retaining walls which was proposed before. No one likes retaining walls, so that is how we designed it. It was really more of looking at the site, but as far as numerical and how big the house was, I couldn't even tell you what those houses were approved for.

So we're for the sidewalk modification as long as it complies with ADA. We think it'll make it much more attractive for everybody and as far as doing more to shade the house on Lot 3, I think we've done a pretty good job and Mother Nature's probably done most of the work; you just can't see it.

Ritter: Great, thank you. Any more questions for staff? Comments? So I'll just start with comments. Personally, I like the DG sidewalk. As long as Lot 3 continues and there is still the potential that that could be a right-of-way walkway and it sounds like it will be, if the next developer comes in then I would be in favor of it. The sidewalk DG on Lot 1, I think that would be fine if it was DG. It fits in with the rural surroundings as long as it's ADA compliant.

As far as tree size, my big concern is when you pull out of the driveway, I don't want trees getting big enough so you can't see the left and right so I don't want to put too big of trees right out on the corner.

O'Connor: They're going to grow big.

Ritter: And that's why I don't know if we really want to upsize from 15 gallons to 24-inch box. Maybe some that are right on the street on that intersection, but those are my two comments. In general, I like that they made Lot 1 a single story. I also like that they brought Lot 3 down so there's less grading and leaving the big trees in the back, and of course, the only neighbor that has to complain is Lot 2 and they're in favor of this. I kind of like that too. Those are my comments.

Nagler: I think this is a well-crafted application. I very much appreciate the fact that the applicant has worked with staff and is amenable to the various suggestions that have been made. Coming into this conversation I had questions about the sidewalk and concerns about the sidewalk. I will express those as well when we get to the project across the street, and the resolution that it be more integrated into the aesthetic of the topography makes a lot of sense to me. I would also ask that you do consider moving the sidewalk away from the pavement of the road as best you can as well. So not only the material of the sidewalk itself but the location relative to the street I think is also important. And, again, if it had some bend to it, it would probably make it more of a path than a sidewalk. So I think that's important.

The trees—I hadn't really focused on them until this conversation so I appreciate Commissioner Allen bringing it up the way you did. I would support starting with larger trees just because it will advance the cause as it were to get adequate sized trees. I'm fine with the removal as is proposed of the oak because when I went out to look at it...when I was out looking at the property across the street I actually walked this property as well and the tree didn't stick with me as a thing of beauty. If it were to be removed, as long as the replanting and the conditions, and I realize the conditions require even more trees than the applicant is proposing, that that's sort of aggressive planting is totally satisfactory to me. So given these changes, I'm supportive of the project.

Balch: I learned a lot about sidewalks and probably more about public right-of-way easements. Thank you very much again. I'm very supportive of the project. I think it's

well designed and I think the Craftsman style fits in nicely with it. I did ask staff earlier in the day about variances and differences between this lot and the one directly across the street. Primarily my initial heartburn with it is that apparently on some map somewhere, General Plan map of course, the zoning stops at the centerline and this is now low density residential and the other side is agricultural. And so it's interesting to me, and I'll just save it for that conversation, is that we're boxing in the agricultural with the uses around here and what I mean by that is obviously further west we have the higher density stuff that's been in there for a long time and to that note, I appreciate staff's comparison. I thought it was really nice and put together so thank you Jenny. That was very helpful to get my head around this. So I support this and as Commissioner Nagler pointed out and the Chair, that a meandering DG type of path or sidewalk—I would support that. I think staff's comment that this is a street standard, I think that's important and they've defended it well. While I pushed back initially, I appreciate that because there's things that staff points out that really do benefit our City long-term and that's really commendable and I appreciate it. With that, I support the project.

In terms of the trees upsizing, I'm probably not as supportive of all seven going to a 24inch box. I probably would support the four in the front and would allow the other three to come in naturally to give them a better chance. I've planted both sizes and as staff has said, you do lose larger trees just because you can't get the root structure established to keep them going and in light of drought conditions, I could support trying to give them a better chance. So I'm probably actually supportive of staying as proposed but would be able to move to the four upsized.

O'Connor: I think Commissioner Nagler stole my notes. So I think I've heard at least from three of you so far and maybe a fourth that we should modify Condition No. 38 so that we meander the DG path as best we can away from the road. As far as the trees go, I actually think we should upsize the five that are down in front by the roadway, especially with the not-so-great oak that's coming out. I would support having those five trees upsized to a 24-inch box. I think it will acclimate well. We've done a lot of 24-inch box here in town. Larger than that I don't think we should risk the downside to the acclimation of a smaller box, so I would go to a 24-inch box on those five trees, and that's it because everything else has been said.

Allen: Okay, so I agree with all comments regarding the DG meandering sidewalk, and ideally off the street and also upsizing the trees at least to 24-inch box for at least five of the trees; the ones near Dublin Canyon Road you mentioned. I struggled with the mass of Lot 3 coming from the west, driving toward the west, and I appreciate the viewscapes helps me to understand this. I was coming into the meeting thinking we need to downscale that a little bit especially thinking what Commissioner Balch brought up, thinking back to our workshop that we had about the church property and how those will be smaller homes, and thinking about the compatibility. This is compatible with the Preserve but you can't see the Preserve from Dublin Canyon Road, or the Laurel Drive homes. You can't see them from Dublin Canyon Road. When you drive Dublin Canyon Road you're looking at small ranch houses. So I think it's important as we think about compatibility and not just think about the Preserve that you can't see but the small ranch houses that exist and what's going to be across the street.

I would like to see Lot 3's garage be closer to 700 square feet and the square footage of the home being closer to about 4,000 square feet and the height being 30 feet which is code and not over code at 32 feet. At a minimum, it ought to be 30 feet and not 32 feet in thinking about compatibility. That's how I feel about that.

Aside from that I think the architecture's beautiful and I can support the project. That's the part that I'm just not 100% comfortable with, and I don't know if anyone can help me through that.

Balch: I was going to mention that, I think Commissioner Allen misunderstood. The comment I believe we're referring to is the 5 unit project across the street going to the 3 unit project, I think the overall comment was that we said it could be larger homes and not smaller homes because of the way they were going to reduce their size because we're going from 2 to 1 and there were a lot of factors there.

Nagler: So if they do what we're asking them to do across the street which they haven't committed to doing, we don't know yet.

Allen: You know, that's a really good point. So I do want to mention one other thing as I think about those to that point, the project across the street, and staff help me here, but I think we had about 3 to 3 ½ acres of flat land that essentially was going to be developed. Was that about right? So each home would have had about one acre?

Weinstein: A little over four acres.

Allen: A little over four, so each home would have had about one acre, I mean spread out over this flat land are, right? Versus this project, we really only have 1.4 or 1.5 acres of flat land within this three acre property so in fact these homes are actually only going to be on half of an acre each.

O'Connor: This means the houses theoretically could be bigger.

Balch: But if I may, this is where I was going earlier with my comment to staff about zoning, right? Across the street is zoned Agricultural, so I was actually trying to say why are we getting to build three here for example versus five versus three on the other side? The zoning is what it is, which we all know where we stood from the last application, but....

Allen: Okay, well thank you for helping me think through that.

Weinstein: Commissioner Allen I just want to clarify the FAR calculations because we're just getting out of the FAR discussion. We did miscalculate it. The FAR for Lot 3 in Table 1 should actually not be 20% but 23%. We inadvertently left out the amount of garage space beyond 600 feet when we were making the calculations. Apologies for that.

Nagler: Just to be clear for future reference, if the garage is 600 feet or smaller it is not part of the FAR calculation, right?

Weinstein: Right.

Allen: And to clarify, if it's 700 square feet, only 100 square feet and not the full 700 counts.

Nagler: Correct, it's everything over 600.

Allen: Okay, so I'm good with the plan then as we see it. The only piece that I'd like to just ask you all on is the additional amount that's shown. I mean we've got a plan for the homes that are being built but we also...if we approve this as is, we're also approving the right to build another 500 square feet for each of the homes as shown on page 7 of 15. So in addition to the plan we have, it could go larger and we wouldn't have purview of having a discussion about screening and trees and other things that might happen.

Balch: Well you don't know if they're going to build above ground. With Lot 3, you could easily build a wine cellar in that hill underneath the second story.

Allen: Would you be open to having some condition related to that?

Balch: Well, they're going to have to come get a permit.

Ritter: But that would need to be per the code.

Weinstein: Any additions to these properties would have to go through the staff level design review process.

Allen: So if there's a view impact if it was being put in a different place and there's a view impact, that's something that would be pushed up most likely?

Weinstein: Yes, that's right. That's what we look for when we look for applications that go through the design review process. We look at compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. We look at views. We look at overall aesthetic character.

Allen: Okay, thank you.

Weinstein: Just to be clear too, so with our revised FAR calculations there would be a little bit less square footage that you could add to Lot 3 because we're already at 23%. You can only go up to 25% so that somewhat addresses the massing issue of additional building square footage being added onto Lot 3.

Ritter: So just with a nod, did you all say upsize the five front trees?

Allen: Yes.

Balch: Yes

Ritter: That's a London Plane tree? That will end up obstructing the driveway access onto the road?

Beaudin: They look a lot like Maple trees so that canopy will be tall but also they are setback quite a bit from the street because of that right-of-way issue. They'll be on the private property.

O'Connor: So that's four of those five trees?

Beaudin: There are four London Plane and one Oak tree closest to the street on Lot 3.

Ritter: Okay, so it sounds like we're getting ready to make a motion.

Beaudin: Commissioner Balch? Could I just ask for a little flexibility on the design of the sidewalk? Prior to the issuance of a building permit....

Balch: We allow the Director of Community Development to approve final design and confirm compliance with ADA requirements.

Commissioner Balch moved to approve PUD-115 per staff recommendation, with the modifications of Condition No. 38 that the sidewalk be a decomposed granite, meandering pathway offset from the street, and that specific design is subject to review and approval by the Director of Community Development; and Condition No. 43 that the four Columbia London Plane trees proposed along Dublin Canyon Road and the one Southern Live Oak in the northern corner of Lot 3 be upsized from 15 gallon size to 24-inch box size.

Commissioner Nagler seconded the motion.

ROLL CALL VOTE:

AYES:Commissioners Allen, Balch, Nagler, O'Connor, and RitterNOES:NoneABSENT:None

Resolution No. PC-2016-04 recommending approval of PUD-115 was entered and adopted as motioned.

7. MATTERS INITIATED BY COMMISSION MEMBERS

Commissioner Balch: I brought this to staff's attention earlier, but driving at some point throughout the City, I noticed that purple pipe is being installed on the corner of Bernal and the intersection at the Koll Center on both the center median and also the northern side of Bernal at the intersection. It's probably part of that whole intersection redesign associated with the Starbucks which is on the southern side and the Koll Center which is on the northern side. I would like to ask the City why purple pipe is being installed under the ground where no recycled water is contemplated or planned. No feasibility study has been performed, nothing, yet purple pipe. And the reason I ask so staff knows is because purple pipe indicates recycled water. Not all recycled water is the same quality. Different plants require different qualities of recycled water. DSRSD produces a lower quality water than Livermore.

The landscaper who is going to be cross-connection certified and know how to treat recycled water versus non-recycled water will have purple hose on its left side of its truck and potable water hosing on the right side of his truck. He is not going to know it's not recycled water or it is recycled water. He's going to dig down and see right below the sprinkler head purple pipe. He's going to walk to his truck and get the purple hose connected to that pipe and that pipe will have been the potable water system because it's not recycled water. Recycled water is not on the plan, not in the feasibility for Bernal at this time, so why is the City, who is requiring purple pipe being installed in the ground?

O'Connor: Are you saying we're installing purple pipe to run potable water?

Balch: Yes. What you would do when transitioning to a recycled water system in the future such as in Hacienda or in the Sports Park or Tennis Park. But Bernal Phase I has no feasibility study on recycled water. The scalping plan being contemplated in a white paper is not approved or discussed.

Beaudin: We appreciate the question and what we'll do is we'll come back because these are items generated by the Commission. If the Commission wants a formal response we can do that. We can also get the City Engineer and the Operations Services Coordinator to give you a call, but I think what we'll do is since it's generated in this fashion is, I'll ask the Chair if it's the will of the Commission to give a formal response. We can do that.

Ritter: You know, I get questions a lot about that too, so helping us get educated on it as projects come is probably a good thing. It might be more of a good informational discussion. Do you guys all agree?

Allen: Yes.

Balch: I particularly would like to ask the question of how they are protecting the City's water supply and to the landscaper who is going to verify if it's two-cycled or not by just simply digging 3 inches into the ground and seeing purple pipe. And again, clarity that there is no recycled water going to Bernal in the City's plan at this time, even the booster pump that the City is considering putting on to grab water from DSRSD and pump it down to Bernal is still millions of dollars away let alone an EIR alone.

Nagler: So it's not a routing issue?

Balch: It's a convenience issue but the problem is that the time between the pipe going in the ground and when recycled water may be there may be truly 10 years.

8. MATTERS FOR COMMISSION'S REVIEW/ACTION/INFORMATION

a. Future Planning Calendar

Balch said he will not be able to attend the second meeting in March, on March 23, 2016.

Beaudin: We're targeting April 12th for the Johnson Drive EDZ, but we're working through a lot of really technical things right now, including what Mr. Wheeler mentioned at the podium this evening. We haven't done our formal marketing for April 12th. That's the date we've tentatively scheduled and it is a work in progress. There's a lot of moving parts right now and we want to make sure we get a complete package to the Commission and Council when we do that meeting so there aren't big unanswered questions.

Balch: And if I may, just because we're always careful, I must recuse myself for that item so we just need to be careful as we progress towards that day.

O'Connor: So you're recusing for that item and that may be the only day I can't be here, April 12th. But we could have another Commissioner by then?

Ritter: It is a workshop though.

b. Actions of the City Council

No discussion was held or action taken.

c. Actions of the Zoning Administrator

No discussion was held or action taken.

d. Matters for Commission's Information

Balch asked if anyone had a report from the recent League of California Cities Planning Commissioners Academy conference.

Beaudin: The League of California Cities Planning Commissioners training session was 3 days. Commissioner Allen attended some of the sessions. I attended the sessions. It was Planning Commissioner training. There were a lot of new Planning Commissioners in the room, some experienced commissioners as well, planning staff from all over the state of California. It was in San Ramon and it was a really nice primer—everything from required findings of approval through to a long-term planning vision and how climate change relates to the work we all do here on a regular basis done by Peter Calthorpe who is one of the original transit-oriented development planners and really respected in the field of planning. He's turned his attention to climate change kind of acknowledging the fact that if we don't have an Earth to plan on, it doesn't matter how things look if I had to sum it up in a nutshell. So he really wants to focus on changes at the local level, but he also talked a lot about state and regional changes and how focusing on more intense land use around transit and shifting people's behavior is an important consideration in the work that we do every day. So, harder for some places to get their minds around, but in the big picture, that was the focus of his keynote talk.

There were other sessions related to improving your development review process which were interesting and gave me some things to think about here in Pleasanton. So overall, very informative and glad I was able to go.

Allen: There was also a session on infill which was interesting. There were on-line slides for this and I'm wondering if it's possible to either print those off or....

Beaudin: Everyone can get access. There's a link for the training that happened on the League's website and not just this year's slides but last year's as well. I won't say every session, but close to all of the sessions are posted. There were friends and colleagues who did presentations and talked about some of the examples they gave. Redwood City had some interesting—the Community Development Director, now Assistant City Manager in Redwood City and San Mateo and some folks I've worked with in the past did presentations on how to make the public process work for you and to do a good job with that. So the slides are there. They're intuitive and the information is definitely embedded.

Allen: So maybe we could get a link out to everyone with those slides? Personally, I didn't attend all of the sessions, but one that I recommend you review the slides on was one on infill. There were five cities including Beverly Hills, Manhattan Beach, Palo Alto, affluent cities and how they deal with infill, and most of these are built-out. One of the themes was have good zoning standards so you have something to rely on versus having to one-off it all. The Calthorpe presentation was very good and the one you mentioned; the public outreach, especially thinking of leading a task force or chair, especially helpful with examples and it was a very engaging presentation about what different cities did wrong and how they would rectify it. They actually gave the project they were working on and those were three that I found especially applicable in our role.

e. Matters for Commission's Action

No discussion was held or action taken.

f. Reports from Meetings Attended (e.g., Committee, Task Force, etc.)

Ritter: I just really like this part and we always seem to stick to it, but learning something from each other and the reports and meetings attended, I actually went to a Downtown Vitality Committee meeting and I've asked Gerry to send us an email or update like we had at Parks and Rec of all the different meetings we should attend like the housing commission. I think it's good to attend some of these as Planning Commissioners. It gives us a little visibility and knowledge of what is going on. They're talking about things we haven't even seen yet and it's good for us to try to go to some of these and ensure we learn. The Economic Vitality Committee priorities in 2016 are to expand and improve downtown parking, recruiting and retaining retail in downtown, formal review and updates of the Downtown Specific Plan, and Wayside and Delucchi Park improvements. So it's good and it was interesting. A handful of different people attended, and I've asked Gerry for the next meeting if he could give us a list of when they regularly meet and it might be good for us to pop in on some of these.

O'Connor: The Pleasanton Downtown Association for seven years has been asking some other people from the Planning Commission to see what they do.

Ritter: As long as there's not three of us there at once, we should be good. Also, the Trails Committee and the Heritage Tree Board, do we have any meetings on those that you guys have attended?

O'Connor: Julie, a question, before we lose that. Can more than two of us attend a meeting if we are not participants?

Harryman: Yes, you can observe, but you don't want to start talking about things. Just for perception, don't sit together. I learned from Sarah Hosterman, there is a Heritage Tree Board of Appeal meeting before your next Planning Commission meeting. There are two appeals so probably starting early, but I don't know the timing.

Allen: A Bicycle Pedestrian Trails Update meeting was held last week. It was a rather short meeting. What's happening in the bicycle and pedestrian area is they are updating the strategic plan. They did one community workshop and got input. It was well attended at the library. There were 40 people which was much larger than they expected and they will be doing one or two more and we can let you know the dates if any of you might want to attend. They received a lot of participation. One thing that is sort of interesting is that they are testing three different pavement types for bicycles to use and they're doing that on the pathway that is on Santa Rita by where Nob Hill used to be and where the Walmart neighborhood market is. The trail that goes underneath Santa Rita, they've laid out and there are signs for three different types of pavement. The roughest one is probably the cheapest one to install and also that whole area is prone to erosion. The issue is cost and longevity. The best one is probably the most expensive to maintain, but they're asking people to test those out and if you view the sign you can then email the team to let them know which you found to be best, and they'll make a decision in the next year as to what kind of pavement to use for future bike paths.

Ritter: One request I might ask is to move Reports for Meetings Attended from F up to A on the agenda. Adam? Could you move F up to A because I'd like to keep that as a priority.

Weinstein: Sure.

Allen: Did I miss what is on our agenda for next meeting?

Weinstein: We have a consent item. It's a church project in Valley Business Park and we have the Ponderosa Project at the end of Rose Avenue. It's a 19 unit project. There's no rezoning needed or General Plan re-designation.

Balch: Can you give us some sense of timing on the Irby Ranch application?

Weinstein: We're simply waiting for a resubmittal from the applicant on that. We haven't gotten a complete set of plans from them for a while. The first plans were preliminary and the applicant has been working on revising them. We met with them a couple of times but not sure about the schedule. The revised submittal could come in a couple of weeks. It could be a month out or two months out as well. It will be a work session.

Nagler: I don't mean to try to make a point out of too big a generalization, but it's interesting to me that the City is embroiled in such a discussion over Lund Ranch II and that number of units, although I'll admit part of it is the location, and we have it coming before us that we now know about proposals for 175 new homes in this community. So it's interesting to me that there doesn't seem to be a balance or rhyme or reason about what we consider to be controversial or what we don't.

Allen: Speaking of the Irby project, if it does come forward, could I just ask that we think about potentially expanding our notification on that project? Given the sensitivity our community has about building and given the number of homes being proposed and feedback we've been getting from surveys about the public not hearing about things, I think it's important to do much more outreach than usual, including expanding the postcard reach so we deal with it upfront.

Beaudin: We'll push information out electronically to as many places as we can but we really want to be consistent with state law and with our policies around notice so we are not picking and choosing the projects that we think are more or less important in town. So I'm completely sensitive to the issue you're talking about but I really want to be mindful about being consistent in that regard especially with respect to state law. When we meet our state requirements, Pleasanton does a little more already so I think the minimum is 300 feet and we do 500 feet and we'll continue to do that. I understand the Planning Commission's request. If we start to get requests, we'll have to look at our policy and see if we want to do it across the board. I think that's the safest way for us to approach notice, but we're always going to have people come to the podium who say they didn't get notice. We keep track of every single notice we send out. We have radius maps and we can tell you exactly who got what when for all of these projects.

Allen: I'm just thinking if there's anything extra like through the PDA, because it's near the downtown, the historic group and asking them to get it out to their networks, maybe that's something extra we can do.

Beaudin: We certainly will, but we're also pushing notifications out through various electronic sources so our PIO is doing a great job with Next Door, Facebook, Twitter, and we're using some newer methods of communication as well. I think that the real consolidation of this is going to be the Communications Plan that's being drafted now. We should have that later this year and it is going to talk specifically about how and why we do the notifications we do and I think with Community Development, because of the topics we deal with, they're going to be pretty plugged into that and so we'll have our state requirements, the City of Pleasanton standard and then we'll have various other means and methods that we're going to be engaged with and executing on. We're really trying to be mindful and get the word out for development projects in Pleasanton. We know it's a hot topic.

O'Connor: some of those notifications go up to 1,000 feet. Is there a special category?

Beaudin: It depends on the application. If it's a legislative change it's different than something that's consistent with zoning in general plan. If it has citywide impacts you go to a newspaper notice instead of a card notification, but we often do both, so it really depends on the kind of application we're looking at.

O'Connor: I know you guys do a lot of work for a long time on some of these projects before they even come to us or to a workshop. Is there a reason why if we're doing agenda planned amendment type of item, why we wouldn't have that earlier than later before staff jumps in and does many, many hours of work on some of these projects if there's not support for a General Plan Amendment?

Beaudin: We're working on a process that we'll bring to you soon that deals with legislative changes like GPAs and rezonings differently than other kinds of applications. We don't really have a name for it yet, but the idea is that we would get early input on those kinds of applications for exactly the reason you just described; a lot of staff time, the community gets worked up, and if it's something ultimately that the community and elected and appointed officials aren't going to support we want to know that early. The developer needs to know that early. It's fair to everyone, so I would say in the next couple of months you'll see a staff report dealing exactly with that.

What I would also say is that we've been working on a Community Development Department update which deals not only with planning but transportation improvements. It's on the City's website on the CDD website under the What's New section, and it essentially summarizes development applications from pre-application through to certificate of occupancy, so you'll be able to know who's working on that, what the project's all about and there's a map of the last piece of that document so you can see where it is in the City. It also summarizes traffic improvements that are happening, so BART to Livermore, Hwy 84 expansion, some of the bike and ped plans in the list, it has a citywide improvement so please check that out as well. We didn't put all new stoplights, but we are going to have some new stoplights starting this summer at the Amador High School up front, so that's on the list because we're buying poles for that now and entering into agreements with the school district to cost-share some of the new sidewalk, so we want people to know that's coming and the reasons for that. If you have questions, there's a hot link in there and it will take you right to the project manager for that so you can get more information.

Ritter: When we post the agenda on line, do we post the future planning calendar also? I don't know if we want to say the day we're going to have them, but it might be good to have that as the second page of the agenda posted.

Beaudin: We do that internally, but it's hard. Things come and go pretty quickly from our plates.

Ritter: Well, just when you guys give us that form, could that be the second page of the agenda?

Beaudin: It could be but if we get people all worked up about something that may not make it, it might be a disservice. We'll work on it. I understand the comment and I think it's really important to give people visibility on the work that we're doing. That's what the CDD update is all about for me, but it certainly does not try to project the Planning Commission agenda in any way so I'll have to think a little more about that one.

9. <u>ADJOURNMENT</u>

Chair Ritter adjourned the meeting at 8:48 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Adam Weinstein Secretary